Office of the Legislative Clerk

Ronald E. Dougherty County Office Building 56 Main Street Owego, NY 13827



MINUTES

• Approval of October 5, 2023 minutes

FINANCIAL

- Year to Date Budget Report
- County Auditor Accounts Payable Update

OLD BUSINESS

- October 2023 Meetings
- Legislative Conference Room Chairs
- Local Law No. 4 of 2023
- Local Law Introductory No. E of 2023

NEW BUSINESS

- 2024 Tentative Budget Public Hearing Tuesday, November 14th
- DATE CHANGE: 2nd Legislative Worksession TUESDAY, November 21st
- November 2023 Legislative Meeting

PERSONNEL

RESOLUTIONS

- K01 Adopt Local Law No. 5 of 2023
- K25 Appointment of Republican Election Commissioner Board of Elections

PROCLAMATIONS

None

ADJOURNMENT



Office of the Legislative Clerk

Ronald E. Dougherty County Office Building 56 Main Street Owego, NY 13827

Legislative Support Minutes

October 5, 2023 1:00 p.m.

ATTENDANCE

Legislators: Legislators Brown, Ciotoli, Flesher, Monell, Mullen, Sauerbrey, Standinger, and Weston were present with Legislator Roberts being absent.

Staff: Legislative Clerk Haskell, Deputy Legislative Clerk Eiklor, County Attorney DeWind, Personnel Officer Parke, and Director of Community Services Morgan.

Guests: None

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Legislator Mullen made the motion, seconded by Legislator Monell to approve the September 7, 2023 Legislative Support minutes, as written. Motion carried.

FINANCIAL

2023 YTD Budget Report: The 2023 Legislative Office YTD Budget Report is included in today's committee agenda packet and was emailed to all Legislators prior to this meeting. To date, budget utilization is 65.8%, which continues to be slightly less than last year at this time. Legislative Clerk Haskell reported there is nothing significant of note.

County Auditor Accounts Payable Report: Legislative Clerk Haskell reported the following accounts payable report for the month of September and 3rd Quarter 2023:

Month/Quarter	AP Invoices	AP Total	P-Card Transactions	P-Card Total
September	632	\$1,944,056.46	174	\$40,801.97
3 rd Quarter	2,102	\$5,391,193.06	499	\$129,208.27

OLD BUSINESS

September 2023 Meetings:

Minutes were taken, typed, copied, indexed, and recorded for the Legislature and Journal of Proceedings for the following Legislature meeting in September 2023:

• Ninth Regular Meeting – September 12, 2023

The Legislative Clerk attended the following meetings/events in September 2023:

- Legislative Standing Committees September 5 and 7, 2023
- Legislative Worksessions September 7 and 21, 2023
- Finance, Legal & Safety Committee September 12, 2023
- Ninth Regular Legislature Meeting September 12, 2023







- Employee Recognition Pin Ceremony (56 Main) September 18, 2023
- Strategic Plan Meeting September 19, 2023
- Leaders Meeting September 26, 2023
- Employee Recognition Luncheon September 28, 2023
- IT Steering Committee September 28, 2023

Legislative Conference Room Chairs: Ms. Haskell inquired we have two different style chairs on loan from the vendor and inquired whether the Legislature was interested in proceeding with new chairs and, if so, their chair style preference. A decision was made to proceed with the purchase of (12) high back brown executive chairs. Ms. Haskell will contact Commissioner of Public Works Hammond to determine how he wishes to proceed budgetarily and then place the order with the vendor. The current chairs will be transferred to the Public Works Conference Room.

Local Law No. 3 of 2023: Ms. Haskell reported Local Law No. 3 of 2023 – Collection of a Hotel and Motel Tax in Tioga County was adopted on September 12, 2023 and mailed to all State entities. A legal notice regarding the adopted local law was published in the County's designated newspapers. Ms. Haskell received acknowledgment of filing from the State that the local law was filed on September 15, 2023.

Local Law No. 4 of 2023: Ms. Haskell reported Local Law No. 4 of 2023 – Establish Position of County Administrator was adopted on September 12, 2023 and mailed to all State entities. A legal notice regarding the adopted local law was published in the County's designated newspapers. As of this meeting, Ms. Haskell has not received acknowledgement of filing from the State.

NEW BUSINESS

Local Law Introductory No. E of 2023 – Sustainability Manager Pratt prepared this local law entitled Tioga County Mandatory Source Separation Law, which will repeal and replace Local Law No. 1 of 2020 entitled the same. The primary reason for the revision is to incorporate a waste hauler permitting process. Legislator Roberts will be asked to introduce the local law at the October 10, 2023 Legislature meeting. Ms. Haskell reported the following proposed timeline:

Date	Meeting	Action
October 10, 2023	Legislature	Legislator to introduce LL Introductory No. E of 2023
	Meeting	Adopt Resolution to Schedule Public Hearing
October 19, 2023	Worksession	Conduct Public Hearing at 10:00 a.m. in the
		Legislative Conference Room.
November 14, 2023	Legislature Meeting	Adopt LL No. 5 of 2023

▲ 607 687 8240 ⊕ 607 687 8232 ♀ www.TiogaCountyNY.gov
Cathy Haskell Legislative Clerk Amy Eiklor Deputy Legislative Clerk

October 2023 Legislative Meeting:

- **Prayer, Pledge, Voting:** Legislator Mullen will lead us in the prayer, pledge and voting process at the October 10, 2023 Legislature meeting.
- Recognition Resolution: There is one (1) Recognition Resolution that will be read and presented by Legislator Ciotoli, Chair of Finance, Legal & Safety at the October 10, 2023 Legislature meeting. Ms. Carrigg will be in attendance and 1st Assistant County Attorney Van Wert and/or 2nd Assistant County Attorney Townsend will speak on behalf of this employee.

✓ Recognizing Stephanie Carrigg's 35 Years of Dedicated Service to Tioga County

• **Proclamations (2):** There are two (2) proclamations that have been read/presented previously, therefore, will just be noted in the minutes of the October 10, 2023 Legislature meeting.

✓ Lead Poisoning Prevention Week ✓ Green Light for Military Service County

• **Resolutions:** All resolutions presented by the Departments at their respective Legislative Standing Committees were reviewed for Legislature consideration at the October 10, 2023 Legislature meeting.

Ms. Haskell reported the following resolution was not ready in time to be presented at the Health & Human Services Committee this week but was presented at the Personnel Committee meeting just prior to this meeting with no objections. Ms. Haskell reported Ms. Morgan is in attendance to answer any questions that may arise. All Legislators in attendance were in favor of including this resolution in the October 10, 2023 Legislature meeting agenda for Legislature consideration.

Reso J36 – Unfund (1) Full-time Vacant Clinical Social Worker and Create (1) Full-time Mental Hygiene Compliance Officer – Mental Hygiene

• Late-File Resolutions: Ms. Haskell reported she is unaware of any late-file resolutions at this time.

PERSONNEL

None

▲ 607 687 8240 ➡ 607 687 8232 ♀ www.TiogaCountyNY.gov
Cathy Haskell Legislative Clerk Amy Eiklor Deputy Legislative Clerk



RESOLUTIONS

Ms. Haskell presented three (3) resolutions for Legislature consideration:

- ✓ J01 Set Public Hearing 2024 Budget
- ✓ J04 Schedule Public Hearing Local Law Introductory No. E of 2023
- ✓ J37 Resolution Supporting Senate Bill S.7645 that Repeals Certain Provisions of the Executive Law Establishing a Fee for Background Checks on Certain Firearm and Ammunition Purchases.

With no objections noted, the Legislators were in favor of moving all three (3) resolutions forward for Legislature consideration at the October 10, 2023 Legislature meeting.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

None

ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 2:37 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,



Legislative Clerk



Tioga County YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

FOR 2023 11 ACCOUNTS FOR: A General Fund A1010 Legislative Board	ORIGINAL APPROP	TRANFRS/ ADJSTMTS	REVISED BUDGET	YTD EXPENDED	ENCUMBRANCES	AVAILABLE BUDGET	PCT USED
A1010 510010 Full Time A1010 510050 All other(on Call, A1010 540010 Advertising A1010 540140 Contracting Servic A1010 540180 Dues A1010 540320 Leased/Service Equ A1010 540320 Literature A1010 540340 Literature A1010 540400 Office Supplies A1010 540420 Office Supplies A1010 540480 Postage A1010 540485 Printing/Paper A1010 540485 Printing/Microfil A1010 540640 Supplies (Not Offi A1010 540640 Telephone A1010 540660 Telephone A1010 581088 State Retirement F A1010 584088 workers Compensati A1010 58588 Disability Insuran A1010 58588 Health Insurance F A1010 588988 Eap Fringe	$\begin{array}{c} 269,807\\ 9,894\\ 350\\ 100\\ 2,600\\ 545\\ 4,650\\ 1,000\\ 315\\ 350\\ 400\\ 1,205\\ 2,200\\ 35,538\\ 19,834\\ 15,917\\ 204\\ 192,221\\ 190\\ \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 0\\ 0\\ 0\\ -500\\ 0\\ -1,195\\ 0\\ 0\\ 155\\ 40\\ 243\\ -60\\ 1,500\\ 0\\ 0\\ 0\\ 0\\ 0\\ 0\\ 0\\ 0\\ 0\\ 0\\ 0\\ 0\\ $	$\begin{array}{c} 269,807\\ 9,894\\ 350\\ 100\\ 2,100\\ 545\\ 3,455\\ 1,000\\ 315\\ 505\\ 390\\ 643\\ 1,145\\ 3,700\\ 35,538\\ 19,834\\ 15,917\\ 204\\ 192,221\\ 190\\ \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 218,912.69\\ 4,983.88\\ 278.92\\ 16.20\\ 160.00\\ 1,842.20\\ 314.02\\ 2,009.83\\ 360.77\\ 216.90\\ 501.28\\ 388.00\\ 541.00\\ 586.95\\ 3,443.55\\ 25,721.60\\ 16,209.89\\ 12,021.67\\ 114.84\\ 129,470.34\\ 143.83\end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} . 00\\ . 00\\ . 00\\ . 00\\ . 00\\ . 00\\ . 00\\ . 00\\ 217.46\\ . 00\\ . 0$	$50,894.31 \\ 4,909.77 \\ 71.08 \\ 83.80 \\ .00 \\ 257.80 \\ 230.98 \\ 1,227.71 \\ 639.23 \\ 98.10 \\ 3.72 \\ 2.00 \\ 102.00 \\ 558.05 \\ 256.45 \\ 9,816.82 \\ 3,623.63 \\ 3,895.57 \\ 88.88 \\ 62,750.86 \\ 46.53 \\ \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 81.1\%\\ 50.4\%\\ 79.7\%\\ 16.2\%\\ 100.0\%\\ 87.7\%\\ 57.6\%\\ 64.5\%\\ 64.5\%\\ 64.5\%\\ 68.9\%\\ 99.3\%\\ 99.5\%\\ 84.1\%\\ 51.3\%\\ 93.1\%\\ 72.4\%\\ 81.7\%\\ 81.7\%\\ 55.5\%\\ 56.4\%\\ 67.4\%\\ 75.6\%\end{array}$
TOTAL Legislative Board	557,770	243	558,013	418,238.36	217.46	139,557.29	75.0%
TOTAL General Fund	557,770	243	558,013	418,238.36	217.46	139,557.29	75.0%
TOTAL EXPENSES	557,770	243	558,013	418,238.36	217.46	139,557.29	



Tioga County YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

FOR 2023 11								
		ORIGINAL APPROP	TRANFRS/ ADJSTMTS	REVISED BUDGET	YTD EXPENDED	ENCUMBRANCES	AVAILABLE BUDGET	PCT USED
	GRAND TOTAL	557,770	243	558,013	418,238.36	217.46	139,557.29	75.0%

** END OF REPORT - Generated by Haskell, Cathy **

TIOGA COUNTY, NEW YORK

Office of the Legislative Clerk Ronald E. Dougherty County Office Building 56 Main Street Owego, NY 13827

📞 607 687 8240 🛛 🖨 607 687 8232 🚱 www.TiogaCountyNY.gov Cathy Haskell Legislative Clerk Amy Eiklor Deputy Legislative Clerk



COUNTY AUDITOR ACCOUNTS PAYABLE UPDATE – OCTOBER 2023

MONTH/	AP	AP INVOICE	P-CARD	P-CARD
QUARTER	INVOICES	TOTALS	TRANSACTIONS	TOTAL
October	672	\$3,438,548.99	193	\$44,404.15

RESOLUTION NO. -23 ADOPT LOCAL LAW NO. 5 OF 2023

WHEREAS: A public hearing was held on October 19, 2023, following due notice thereof to consider the adoption of Local Law Introductory No. E of the Year 2023; A Local Law establishing the Tioga County Mandatory Source Separation Law and repealing Local Law No. 1 of the Year 2020 entitled Tioga County Mandatory Source Separation Law; and

WHEREAS: It is in the best interest of the residents of Tioga County to adopt such Local Law which will be Local Law No. 5 of 2023; therefore be it

RESOLVED: That the following Local Law be and hereby is adopted:

County of Tioga

Local Law No. 5 of the Year 2023.

A Local Law establishing the Tioga County Mandatory Source Separation Law and repealing Local Law No. 1 of the Year 2020 entitled Tioga County Mandatory Source Separation Law.

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the County of Tioga as follows:

SECTION 1: TITLE

Local Law No. 1 of the Year 2020 entitled Tioga County Mandatory Source Separation Law is hereby REPEALED and REPLACED with the establishment of Local Law No. 5 of the Year 2023 entitled Tioga County Mandatory Source Separation Law.

SECTION 2: PURPOSE

The purpose of this article is to encourage, facilitate, and mandate the source separation of recyclable materials on the part of each and every household, business, and institution within Tioga County. The Tioga County Legislature acknowledges that control of the collection, transportation, disposal of solid waste and recycling with emphasis on source reduction and reuse in the county is essential to the economy and general welfare of the citizens of Tioga County. The current version is intended to replace Local Law No. 1 of 2020 entitled Tioga County Mandatory Source Separation Law.

SECTION 3: AUTHORITY

This Local Law is hereby enacted pursuant to the authority granted by Section 10 of the Municipal Home Rule Law and Section 120-aa of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York.

SECTION 4: DEFINITIONS

- A. Terms as used or referred to in this article, unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context, are as defined in Title 6 Part 360 of the New York Codes, Rules and Regulations, Solid Waste Management Facilities, as amended.
- B. As used in this article, the following additional terms shall have the meanings indicated:

MATERIALS RECOVERY FACILITY (MRF) – A facility approved by the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation for receiving and processing recyclable materials into marketable commodities.

PUBLIC FACILITY — Any facility allowing public access, including but not limited to parks, recreational facilities, shopping centers, shopping malls, office buildings, restaurants, hospitals, schools, and churches.

SOURCE SEPARATION — That recyclables shall be maintained and placed for collection separately from refuse intended for disposal.

SOLID WASTE - All materials discarded as being spent, useless, worthless or in excess to the owners at the time of discard or rejection, including but not limited to garbage or refuse, but shall not include Recyclables, Yard and Garden Waste, human wastes, rendering wastes, major appliances, regulated medical waste, construction and demolition wastes, residue from incinerators or other destructive systems for processing waste, junked automobiles, tires, pathological, toxic, explosive, liquid, radioactive material or other waste material which, under existing or future federal, state or local laws, require special handling in its collection or disposal.

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGER - The manager of the Solid Waste Department appointed by the Economic Development & Planning Director, Economic Development & Planning Deputy Director, and/or the Tioga County Legislature.

WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES – Any person, company partnership or other entity providing collection or transfer of refuse and/or solid waste, including tires to a solid waste management facility.

WASTE GENERATOR – Any entity which generates solid waste.

WASTE HAULER – Any person, company, partnership or other entity engaged in the business of providing Collection Service pursuant to any contract, agreement, or other arrangement with any Waste Generator, where Solid Waste is collected for disposal at a permitted solid waste disposal or transfer facility, or a municipal department or other governmental division responsible for collection of Solid Waste from some or all Waste Generators in Tioga County.

SECTION 5: SOURCE SEPARATION REQUIREMENT

A. Every Waste Generator shall Source Separate, which means the segregation of County Recyclable Materials from non-recyclable Solid Waste at the point of generation by Waste Generators, and the placement of County Recyclable Materials into Recycling Receptacles for collection and delivery to a Materials Recovery Facility or Recycling Facility.

Materials that must be source-separated include paper, corrugated cardboard, glass, metals, plastics, leaves, yard wastes, tires, batteries (wet and dry cell) and household hazardous waste. A detailed published list of materials to be curbside recycled will be on file with the Tioga County Legislature and may be updated from time to time.

- B. For the purpose of this article, the term "recyclable material" shall mean those materials that must be source separated, as defined in B, with the exception of household hazardous waste.
- C. Each and every waste hauler, public and private, providing waste collection services in the County of Tioga shall be required to provide curbside collection of source separated recyclables for all units serviced by the hauler.
- D. All public and private haulers are prohibited from commingling source separated recyclables with solid waste.
- E. Every Waste Generator shall deliver or arrange for the delivery of County Recyclable Materials to a Recycling Facility or make source separated County Recyclable Materials available for collection by a Waste Hauler/Recyclables Collector and ultimate delivery to a Materials Recovery Facility or Recycling Facility.

<u>SECTION 6:</u> PREPARATION OF RECYCLABLES AND OTHER SOURCE SEPARATED MATERIALS FOR CURBSIDE COLLECTION

- A. Nothing in this article is intended to prevent any waste generator from making arrangements for the reuse, private collection, sale or donation of recyclables; provided, however, that records shall be kept of all such collection of recyclables.
- B. From the time any person places any recyclable materials at or near any curb, sidewalk or street for purposes of collection by a waste hauler, those recyclable materials shall be considered the property of the waste hauler. No other person shall collect, pick up, remove or cause to be collected, picked up or removed any recyclable materials so placed for collection. Each such

unauthorized collection, pickup or removal shall constitute a separate violation of this article.

- C. In the event that a hauler has refused to collect certain recyclable materials because they have not been placed or treated in accordance with the provisions of this article, the person responsible for initially placing those materials for collection may and shall remove those materials from any curb, sidewalk or street in accordance with the provisions of this article.
- D. Placement of Recyclables
 - 1. Recyclable materials shall be placed separately from any non-recyclable solid waste placed for collection. Recyclable materials should be prepared in conformance with County practices and standards established pursuant to this section.
 - 2. No person shall place any recyclable materials at or near any curb, sidewalk or street for purposes of collection unless the materials are prepared in conformance with County practices and standards established pursuant to this section.
 - 3. The Tioga County Sustainability Manager is hereby authorized and directed to designate, by written statement, from time to time, the practices and standards for preparation of recyclables for collection. Such written designation shall be filed with the Clerk of the County Legislature and shall become effective 90 days after filing. The Tioga County Sustainability Manager may solicit information and input from solid waste collectors, solid waste management facility operators, and other concerned parties prior to designating revised rules for preparation of materials.
- E. Waste haulers shall not be responsible for collection of waste materials, which have not been placed or prepared in accord with this article. In the event of non-collection of waste or recyclable materials, the hauler shall provide written notification of reason for non-collection.
- F. The responsible generator shall immediately remove and properly prepare and dispose of all materials refused for collection, taking all measures necessary to properly and legally restore all disturbed land and surface to the condition existing prior to deposition or reimburse the County or other municipal entity for the same.

Multifamily buildings and complexes.

- A. Apartment complexes, condominium complexes, cooperative apartments, hotels, motels and bungalow or resort colonies shall be required to establish a private drop off program for the source separation of recyclable materials for collection and transportation to a recycling facility where curbside collection is not practiced or desired.
- B. The owner and/or manager of every multifamily apartment building or condominium within the County shall provide and maintain, in a neat and sanitary condition, recycling drop off(s) to receive all recyclable materials

generated by residents of the building or complex. In cases where a condominium association exists, the condominium association shall be responsible for provision and maintenance of the recycling drop off(s). It shall be the tenant's responsibility to separate designated recyclable materials from the solid waste and deposit the recyclables in the drop off(s) in the manner prescribed by facility management.

C. The owner or manager of every multifamily building or complex shall arrange for the collection and/or transportation of all recyclable materials to a material recovery facility or secondary materials market.

Residential/commercial (institutional) and industrial waste and recyclables.

- A. All residential solid waste collected by either municipal or private haulers shall be source separated and delivered to an appropriate facility for disposition, as may be designated by the County.
- B. All commercial/industrial/institutional solid waste collected by either municipal or private haulers shall be source separated and delivered to an appropriate facility for disposition, as may be designated by the County.
- C. All recyclable commercial/industrial/institutional by-products shall be source separated and delivered to an appropriate facility for the express purpose of processing for sale to a secondary materials market. Nothing in this section shall prevent waste generators from marketing these materials directly to an end-use market, secondary materials market or secondary materials broker.

SECTION 7: PENALTIES

Penalties for Waste Generators.

- A. Failure to comply with this article by any person shall be an offense punishable as provided.
- B. Each day of violation of this article shall constitute a separate offense.
- C. The waste hauler shall maintain the right to refuse collection of solid waste and/or recyclables due to a lack of source separation or proper preparation on the part of the waste generator. In such a case, the hauler shall affix a notice to the waste material, which clearly states the reason for non-collection.
- D. Individuals convicted of a first offense under this article shall be subject to a fine of not less than \$25 and not more than \$50. Conviction of a second offense within one year of the first offense shall be punishable by a fine of not less than \$50 and not more than \$100. Conviction of subsequent offense(s) within one year of the first offense shall be punishable by a fine of at least \$100 and not more than \$200. In addition to the penalties listed above, anyone convicted of an offense under the provisions of this article shall be subject to a civil penalty to recover cost of enforcement and prosecution, including but not limited to attorneys' fees, court costs and site cleanup costs, if applicable.
- E. Any company, partnership, corporation, municipality or entity other than an individual person convicted of a first offense as provided for by this article shall

be subject to a fine of not less than \$200 and not more than \$1,000. Conviction of subsequent offenses shall be punishable by a fine of not less than \$1,000 and not more than \$2,000. Any such entity convicted of an offense under the provisions of this article shall also be subject to a civil penalty to recover the cost of enforcement and prosecution, including but not limited to attorneys' fees, court costs and site cleanup costs, if applicable. In addition, the County Attorney may also maintain an action or proceeding in the name of Tioga County in a court of competent jurisdiction to compel compliance with or to restrain by injunction such violation.

Penalties for Waste Haulers.

- A. Failure of any hauler to comply with this article shall be an offense punishable as provided.
- B. Each day of violation of this article shall constitute a separate offense.
- C. Violation of any section of this article shall be punishable by a fine not in excess of \$1,000. In addition, the violation of any section of this article shall be subject to a civil penalty imposed by the County to recover cost associated with enforcement and prosecution, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs and site cleanup costs, if applicable. And, in addition, Tioga County may also maintain an action or proceeding in a court of competent jurisdiction to compel compliance with or to restrain by injunction any violation of this article.

SECTION 8: SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL ON PUBLIC FACILITIES AND PROPERTY

- A. All public facilities within Tioga County shall provide public refuse receptacles for solid waste disposal by facility users and employees. These receptacles shall only be utilized for solid waste generated onsite.
 - 1. Parks may, in lieu of providing separate public receptacles for refuse, require that park patrons take their refuse with them upon leaving the park. The municipalities shall post signs at all park entrances advising the public of the rule. Park patrons shall be responsible for removing refuse from the park and disposing of them in accordance with this article.
- B. There shall be provided separate public receptacles for recyclables. Such containers shall be clearly marked RECYCLE, and a list of recyclable items shall accompany said public refuse receptacle. There shall be an adequate number of clearly marked and accessible public receptacles for recyclable materials in order to facilitate recycling. These receptacles shall only be utilized for recyclables generated onsite.
- C. All recyclable materials shall be placed in separate public recycling receptacles. The responsibility to separate recyclables from non-recyclables shall be placed on the facility user.

1. Parks may, in lieu of providing separate public receptacles for recyclables, require that park patrons take their recyclable materials with them upon leaving the park. The municipalities shall post signs at all park entrances

advising the public of the rule. Park patrons shall be responsible for removing recyclables from the park and disposing of them in accordance with this article.

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of the subsection, concession stands within the park providing food or other items packaged in recyclable containers shall provide both refuse and recyclable containers to conform to this section.

- D. It shall be a violation of this article for any person to place or to cause to be placed any material other than a recyclable in or near a public receptacle designated for recyclable materials.
- E. It shall also be a violation of this article for any person to place or to cause to be placed any recyclable material in or near a public refuse receptacle designated for non-recyclable materials.
- F. Any person, including employees of public facilities, convicted of a violation of this section shall be subject to a fine of up to \$50 or community service.
- G. The proprietor of any public facility convicted of a violation of this section shall be subject to a fine of up to \$200 or community service. Each day of violation shall constitute a separate offense.

SECTION 9: ENFORCEMENT & PERMITTING

- A. All provisions of this article shall be enforced by a municipal code enforcement official or other appropriate enforcement agencies.
- B. Permit Procedures for Haulers (Commercial, Business)
 - 1. No Hauler shall collect, transfer or dispose of solid waste and recyclable materials in Tioga County without possessing a current permit issued by the Sustainability Manager.
 - 2. An application for a solid waste/recycling permit shall be in writing and shall contain such information as required by the Sustainability Manager.
 - 3. The application shall be accompanied by the following:
 - a. Evidence of insurance, conforming with current NYSDEC and Tioga County requirements.
 - b. Payment of the administration fee payable to the Tioga County Treasurer and mailed to Tioga County Solid Waste, 56 Main Street, Owego, NY 13827.
 - 4. Within fifteen (15) business days of receipt of application, the Sustainability Manager shall, in writing, grant or deny the application, or require other further information and/or documentation. The Sustainability Manager may require additional information regarding the condition of the applicant's vehicles to ensure they will not leak during transit and are capable of transporting material in a covered condition. The permit may be withheld for reasons which include the failure to submit all required information, unsuitable condition of the vehicle(s); any unresolved fines and/or the applicant's history of prior suspensions/violations.
 - 5. Annual reporting is required by February 28th. If a hauler does not report their annual tonnages and supporting documentation, their permit will

not be renewed until all past reporting documentation is submitted to the Sustainability Manager.

- 6. Permits shall expire annually on March 31st. Permits may be renewed pursuant to the provisions of this law.
- 7. Permits may be suspended or revoked by the Sustainability Manager pursuant to this local law.
- 8. Permit fees and or changes in permit fees shall be reviewed and approved by the Tioga County Legislature.
- 9. Termination of a permitted hauler's insurance automatically invalidates the hauling permits.
- 10. Permits shall not be transferable to another business without express written permission of the Sustainability Manager.
- 11. Permits may be suspended by the Sustainability Manager for the following:
 - a. If upon inspection, the hauler's vehicle is in such a condition as to allow leakage while in transit, or
 - b. If the body of the truck is not wholly enclosed and or the contents (load) are not secured with a cover or tarping mechanism or other appropriate load securing device, or
 - c. If the operation or unloading of vehicles is not conducted in a manner so as to prevent the premature spillage or loss of contents, or
 - d. If the hauler has failed to remedy the conditions leading to a suspension of a permit within the time specified in such order of suspension, or
 - e. Any other violation of law of these regulations.
- 12. Suspension or revocation of a permit will be followed by a written notice of such violation, addressed to the permittee. Within fifteen (15) days of the receipt of said written notice of suspension or revocation, the hauler must notify, in writing to the Sustainability Manager and the Finance Committee of the Tioga County Legislature and shall file petition stating the reasons and basis for said appeal.
- 13. Within fifteen (15) days of an appeal, the Finance Committee shall conduct a hearing, upon notice to the permittee to review the action of the Sustainability Manager with respect to suspension or revocation of a permit. The permittee shall present all witnesses and documents and shall be entitled to be represented by counsel at any stage of the proceedings. Said proceedings may be adjourned only once by right of the permittee; and all other adjournments shall be determined by the members of the Committee. Within fifteen (15) days of said hearing, said appeals committee shall by written decision, affirm the actions of the Sustainability Manager, reinstate such permit, and/or take any other appropriate action. Permittee may continue to conduct hauling operations during the appeal period.

SECTION 10: REPORTING TO TIOGA COUNTY SUSTAINABILITY MANAGER

- A. All waste haulers, and any other person or entity that collects, transports and/or markets recyclables, must maintain monthly records of all recyclable material. These records must include the following:
 - 1. The total tonnage, by material, of recyclable material collected.
 - a) The total tonnage, by material, of recyclable material delivered to each and every materials recovery facility, secondary materials market, secondary materials broker or end-use market.
 - b) Weight slips from the broker or end-use market will fulfill this requirement.
- B. Reports containing the information required in this section shall be compiled and delivered to the Sustainability Manager on an annual basis. Reports shall be filed with the Sustainability Manager no later than February 28th of the subsequent year of filing.
- C. Each waste hauler shall retain for no less than five years the records and documents required pursuant to this article and shall make such documents available upon the request of the Sustainability Manager or law enforcement officers.

SECTION 11: PRIORITY

Pursuant to Section 1 of Chapter 675 of the Laws of 1982 of the State, this article takes precedence over and shall supersede any inconsistent provisions of any local law enacted by any municipality within the County.

SECTION 12: EFFECTIVE DATE

This Local law shall take effect January 1, 2024.

REFERRED TO:	ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE
	PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -23 APPOINTMENT OF REPUBLICAN ELECTION COMMISSIONER BOARD OF ELECTIONS

WHEREAS: Legislative approval is required for any appointment to a management/confidential position within Tioga County; and

WHEREAS: Due to retirement, the Republican Election Commissioner for the Republican Party will become vacant as of December 2, 2023; and

WHEREAS: The Chairman of the Republican Party has submitted their recommendation to the Clerk of the Legislature; therefore be it

RESOLVED: That Kelly Johnson be and hereby is appointed Election Commissioner for the Republican Party effective December 2, 2023, through December 31, 2024, at the annual M/C salary of \$51,988.